
 

1 

 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, 25th April, 2007 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Members Room 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Committee Secretary: G Lunnun, Research and Democratic Services 

Tel: 01992 564244 Email: glunnun@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Members: 
 
Dr D Hawes (Chairman), Ms M Marshall, G Weltch, Councillors Mrs D Borton and 
Mrs P Smith   
 
Parish/Town Council Deputy Representative(s):  
 
Councillors J Salter, B Surtees (Deputy) 
 
 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

  To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2007 
(attached). 
 

 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  To declare interests in any item on the agenda. 
 

 



Standards Committee  Wednesday, 25 April 2007 
 

2 

 4. REVISED  CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS  (Pages 11 - 26) 
 

  Recommendation: 
 
To consider the revised Code of Conduct with a view to recommending its 
adoption to the Council. 
 
(Monitoring Officer) Copies of the revised Code of Conduct and an explanatory 
memorandum are attached. 
 
Section 51 of the Local Government Act 2000 states that it is the duty of a relevant 
authority within the period of six months from the making of a new model code to 
pass a resolution adopting a new code in place of their existing code. 
 
The new model code was made on 2 April 2007 and the Council should adopt its 
new code by not later than 1 October 2007. 
 
The Council can adopt the model code as it stands or may include additional 
provisions which are consistent with the model code. 
 
In order to meet the timescale, the full Council must adopt a new code at one of its 
meetings scheduled for 28 June 2007 and 24 July 2007. To report to one of those 
meetings this Committee will need to consider the new code and make 
recommendations at this meeting or decide to hold a special meeting in June or July.
 
After adopting a new code the Council must: 
 

(a) ensure that copies are available for inspection by the public at all reasonable 
hours; 

(b) publish a notice in one or more local newspapers stating that a new code 
has been adopted and advising where copies can be inspected; 

(c) send a copy to the Standards Board for England. 
 

 5. ALLEGATIONS ABOUT THE CONDUCT OF DISTRICT AND PARISH/TOWN 
COUNCILLORS - CURRENT POSITION  (Pages 27 - 28) 

 
  (Monitoring Officer) To consider the attached schedule. 

 



Standards Committee  Wednesday, 25 April 2007 
 

3 

 6. INDEPENDENT MEMBER - VACANCY   
 

  Recommendation: 
 
To note the decision of the Council in relation to the appointment of a new 
independent member of this Committee. 
 
 
(Monitoring Officer) The Council appointed a selection panel of district councillors to 
secure the recruitment of an independent member as a successor to Dr D Hawes on 
the Standards Committee. 
 
Publicity regarding the vacancy resulted in the issue of ten recruitment packs to 
interested parties. Out of those ten requests four applications were received. All four 
applicants met the selection criteria and they were invited for interview by the Panel. 
One applicant withdrew and the remaining three applicants attended for interview. 
 
The selection panel included Councillors Mrs D Borton and Mrs P Smith. Dr Hawes 
attended the interviews and had an input into the assessment process but did not 
vote on an appointment. The Panel was also assisted by the Monitoring Officer and 
the Deputy Monitoring Officer although, like Dr Hawes, they took no part in the final 
decision and voting on an appointment. 
 
A report of the Panel recommending the appointment of Mr M Wright with effect from 
the date of resignation of Dr D Hawes, namely 17 May 2007 will be considered at 
the Council meeting on 24 April 2007. The decision of the Council will be reported 
orally. 
 

 7. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

  (Monitoring Officer) The calendar for 2007/08 provides for meetings of the 
Committee on 17 July 2007, 16 October 2007, 26 February 2008 and 8 April 2008. 
 
Additional meetings can be arranged as and when required by the Committee. 
 



Standards Committee  Wednesday, 25 April 2007 
 

4 

 8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business 
set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act 
indicated: 
 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of the following items which are confidential under Section 100(A)(2) 
of the Local Government Act 1972: 
 

Agenda Item No Subject 
Nil Nil 

 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall 
proceed to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after 

the completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted 
for report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the 
subject matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 
 

 
 



1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Standards Committee Date: 27 February 2007  
    
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping Time: 7.30  - 8.30 pm 
  
Members 
Present: 

Dr D Hawes (Chairman), Ms M Marshall, G Weltch, Councillors Mrs D Borton, 
Mrs P Smith, J Salter and B Surtees. 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

  
 
 

  
Apologies:   
  
Officers 
Present: 

G Lunnun (Allegations Determination Manager), C O'Boyle (Monitoring 
Officer) and I Willett (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
 

  
 
 

29. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 14 November 2006 
be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
30. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations of interest were made pursuant to the Council's Code of Member 
Conduct. 
 

31. CODE OF CONDUCT - APPLICATION  
 
The Monitoring Officer reported that following the High Court decision in the 
Livingstone case, a more restrictive view needed to be taken of when the Code of 
Conduct could apply to the actions of a member. 
 
The interpretation of the words "in any other circumstances" included in paragraphs 4 
and 5 (a) of the Code of Conduct had already been limited by the Adjudication Panel 
for England in earlier cases.  However, a much stricter interpretation had now been 
imposed arising from the decision of Collins J in the Livingstone case. 
 
Members noted that in light of the judgement, the Government had included 
proposals in the current Local Government and Public Involvement in the Health Bill 
to make clear that the Code of Conduct was not limited to actions taken only in an 
official capacity.  However, until that legislation (if enacted) came into force, it was 
necessary to apply the law as declared by Mr Justice Collins. 
 
The Committee considered advice which had been issued by the Standards Board's 
Legal Department. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



Standards Committee  27 February 2007 

2 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the advice from the Standards Board following the High Court decision in 
the Livingstone case be noted. 

 
32. CODE OF CONDUCT - CONSULTATION ON REVISED MODEL  

 
The Monitoring Officer drew attention to the copy of a letter from the Department for 
Communities and Local Government together with a copy of a consultation paper 
seeking views on a draft of a proposed new model Code of Conduct for Local 
Authority Members which had been sent to members of the Committee on 
6 February 2007. 
 
The Monitoring Officer also drew attention to a briefing note prepared by the 
Association of Council Secretaries and Solicitors on the draft revised Code which 
sought to identify the relaxations from the current Code and the additional 
obligations.  Members also received a briefing paper from the Local Government 
Information Unit which highlighted and commented on issues. 
 
The Committee considered the documents and focussed on the specific questions on 
which the Government had sought views. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 (1) That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to submit the following views 

in response to the consultation paper: 
 

(a) Paragraph 3 - Disclosure of confidential information  
 
Question 1 

 
 "Does the proposed text on the disclosure of confidential information strike an 

appropriate balance between the need to treat certain information as 
confidential, but to allow some information to be made public in defined 
circumstances when to do so would be in the public interest?” 

             
            Response 
 
 Agreed but clear guidance is required;  safeguards are needed to protect 

those affected by disclosures. 
 
 (b) Paragraph 4 - Behaviour outside official duties   
 
            Question 2 
 
 "Subject to powers being available to us to refer in the Code to actions by 

members in their private capacity beyond actions which are directly relevant 
to the office of the member, is the proposed text which limits the proscription 
of activities in members' private capacity to those activities which have 
already been found to be unlawful by the Courts, appropriate?” 

             
            Response 
 
 Supported on the basis of actual convictions only; not someone's judgement 

as to what might be regarded as criminal. 
  

Page 6



Standards Committee  27 February 2007 

3 

 
           (c) Paragraph 8 - Publicity Code   
 
           Question 3 
 
 "Is the Code recommended practice on Local Authority Publicity serving a 

useful purpose?  If the Publicity Code is abolished, do consultees think some 
or all of its provisions should be promulgated in a different way, e.g. via 
guidance issued by local government representative bodies, or should 
authorities be left to make their own decisions in this area without any central 
guidance?  Should authorities not currently subject to the Publicity Code be 
required to follow it, or should the current position with regard to them be 
maintained?” 

 
            Response 
 
 There is benefit in having a national Code; the current Code is out of date, it 

is based on the former Committee system and does not recognise the high 
profile of Portfolio Holders; reference needs to be made to modern forms of 
communication, e.g. websites; the period for restricting publicity between the 
time of publication of a notice of an election and polling day needs to be 
amended to prevent publicity issued prior to this period being published within 
that period. 

 
 (d) Paragraph 10 - Gifts and Hospitality   
 
            Question 4 
 
 "Does the proposed text with regard to gifts and hospitality adequately 

combine the need for transparency as well as proportionality in making public 
information with regard to personal interest?” 

 
            Response 
 
 Bringing the register into the public arena is supported;  however, it will be 

very cumbersome for members to be required to update the Register of 
Members' interests each time they receive gifts and/or hospitality;  further, it is 
considered unreasonable to expect a member to remember when the 
proposed five year period expires;  the limit of £25 needs to be increased to 
reflect current day prices (£50 is considered appropriate);  the Standards 
Board should be empowered to review the amount from time to time and to 
issue guidance to local authorities on increases in the amount. 

 
 (e) Paragraphs 12 and 13 - Interests of family, friends and those with a 

close personal association  
 
            Question 5 
 
 "Does the proposed text relating to friends, family and those with a close 

personal association adequately cover the breadth of relationships which 
ought to be covered, to identify the most likely people who might benefit from 
decisions made by a member, including family, friends, business associates 
and personal acquaintances?” 

 
 
 

Page 7



Standards Committee  27 February 2007 

4 

            Response 
 
 Supported but it will be very difficult to define a "close personal association"; 

without a clear definition there is unlikely to be any consistency in members’ 
decisions to declare an interest; if this phrase is introduced, it makes the 
reference to "friends" superfluous. 

 
 (f) Paragraph 14 - Definition of personal interests 
 
            Response 
 
 The proposal to restrict the requirement to register a personal interest only 

where the interest might be regarded as affecting the member to a greater 
extent than the majority of other Council taxpayers, ratepayers or inhabitants 
of the Ward affected by the matter is welcomed; however, this should be 
extended to Councillors in Parish and Town Councils which have wards. 

 
            (g) Paragraph 17 – Prejudicial interests – List of exemptions 
 
            Question 6 
 
            “ Would it be appropriate for new exceptions to be included in the text as 

additions to the list of items which are not to be regarded as prejudicial?” 
 
            Response 
 
            The three new items are supported. 
             
 (h) Paragraph 19 - Participation in relation to prejudicial interests  
             
            Question 7 
 
 “Is the proposed text, relaxing the rules to allow increased representation at 

meetings, including where members attend to make representations, answer 
questions or give evidence, appropriate?” 

 
            Response 
 
            Supported.  The current Codes of Conduct of some statutory bodies e.g. Lee 

Valley Regional Park Authority are much more restrictive; these bodies 
should be required to follow the new model Code. 

 
 (i) Paragraph 23 - Gender neutrality of language   
 
            Question 8 
 
 "Is there a better, more user-friendly way of ensuring the text is gender 

neutral, for example, would consultees consider that amending of the wording 
to say "you" instead of "he or she" or "him or her" would result in a clearer and 
more accessible Code for members?” 

 
 Response 
 
            It would be less clumsy and reduce the number of words if "you", "your" or 

“they” were used, as is the case in other similar codes; and 
 

Page 8



Standards Committee  27 February 2007 

5 

            (2) That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to review the Council's 
Protocols in the light of the new model Code of Conduct, when adopted. 

 
33. PLANNING PROTOCOL - REVISION  

 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer reported that, at the last meeting, it had been agreed 
that changes should be made to the Planning Protocol regarding planning 
applications made by officers and members and the role of Area Plans Sub-
Committee Chairmen, if a planning matter was referred on to the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Members were advised that there had been one significant development since the 
last meeting relating to a form for notifying member/officer status and of any 
relationship to any member of the Council.  The Committee had been keen to ensure 
that a form should be sent to any applicant so as to prompt them to disclose these 
matters but the Government had now prescribed its own form which dealt with the 
point. 
 
The Committee considered proposed amendments to the Planning Protocol. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the revised Planning Protocol be recommended to the Council and to 

Parish/Town Councils for adoption. 
 

34. ALLEGATIONS ABOUT THE CONDUCT OF DISTRICT AND PARISH/TOWN 
COUNCILLORS - CURRENT POSITION  
 
The Committee noted the current position and allegations made to the Standards 
Board for England regarding District and Parish/Town Councillors.  The Allegations 
Determinations Manager reported on an allegation not included on the schedule in 
respect of which the Standards Board had decided there should be no investigation. 
 
Members referred to recent statistics included in the Council Bulletin regarding 
allegations about the conduct of District and Parish/Town Councillors and the 
situation nationally. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That appropriate statistical information be included in the Committee's Annual 

Report to the Council. 
 

35. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The Committee noted that the calendar for 2006/07 provided for a further meeting of 
the Committee on 25 April 2007. 
 
Members also noted that the Council's draft calendar of meetings for 2007/08 
provided for meetings of the Committee on 17 July 2007, 16 October 2007, 
26 February 2008 and 22 April 2008. 
 

CHAIRMAN
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



��������	
��

� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � 
 � � �

���
�����		���

������������������������������������

�
�����������
���������������������������������������  !�

���� � � � � ����	
��
������

���������������
������ ����	
��
������

����������������� � � �������������

�
�� ��������"� ��� ������ ���� ��##�������� ���� ������ $�%���#����#�&��� �
�� �����'��(� ������ ���

�)�����������
��*�'��������������+"����������, �-�������.�/�0-���������1�/�����- ,���/��1�������.��

����
��������$�%���#���������   ���2

�
����������"����������
���������������������������'��
���������, �,������
������2�

�
�� ��������"� ��� ������ ��� ���������� �
��� �
��� ������ ��� �����������'��
� �
�� *�����*���� ���� �
�� ��#��

+���(��*����������������������������������.3�-������
���������2

������� ��!�""# !#"# ��� $��%%&�!���� �

	�4�-���
���������#�"�+������������
�����������
���������������������������������������  !�

������#�����������������1�����"��  !2�

��� �
����������**����4�

��� ���������������*���������
�������������(���������5����6�����

�+� ����������������
�������'��(����
�������������(����4�

��� �������"��������6�

���� ������������������6�

����� ���������+����(
��������6�

��%� ��*����
��������6�

�%� �
��$�����������������
����"6�

�%�� �
�������*�������7���������
����"6�

�%��� �
���������8���������#��(���"�7������(����
����"6�

�%���� �
����##���������������
�����"����������6�

��)� �
��������������
��	�������������"6�

�)� ���������������������
����"6�

�)�� ��9��������
����"6�

�)��� �
��:���������
����"6�����

���� �   ��2��2�
��� �����
������%�������
���������$�������7�����*������������   -���2	2��  -;-. -�2�

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



� �

�)���� ��
��������7��&����
����"/�

��������
�����������������������<���
����"=�����������������������(�"2�

��$#&���$#��'��� $(!��

��4�-���
�������������������
����
����������
����������<�
������=��
��������������
��#����������

�������+"��
����������"������������������������, �����
��������$�%���#���������   ������(������
��

��������'
��
�����)*���������#�#+����������>�*����#�#+�������������
����"2�

��� ��+9�������*���(��*
���1������?�/��%��"�*��%����������
�����������
����
����������
������������

#�������"�����������
����"2�

�1� 7���(��*
� ?���� ��� �
�� ����� ��� ���� #�������"� ���� *������ ���
�������/� �
�� $������� �������

���
����"/� �
�� �����*������� 7������ ���
����"/� �
�� ������� 8���� ���� �#��(���"� 7������(�

���
����"/��������������������
������������9��������
�������2�

�.� 7���(��*
�!�����
��������������#�������"�����*����
���������2�

�,� ��+9���������+>*���(��*
��?�������������+���'/�*���(��*
��- ������������������/�--�����-�����

��� �
�� ����� ���� #�������"� ���"� ���� �����"� ��������/� ��������� ��������� ���� ������� +����(
�

��������/��
����##���������������
�����"����������������
��������������
��	�������������"2�

�?� �
�������'��(�*��%�����������
�����������#�������"����"�����������
����"�'
��
�����*������(�

�)�����%�������(�#����4�

��� ���*���(��*
�-�.�/�����
����������������<#�����(=4�

��� ��+>*���(��*
��+�6�

���� �����+>*���(��*
����/��
��'�����<��������)�����%�@�=�����</�����������##������=6�

�+� *���(��*
��3�?�/�3�!������-��-��+�6�

��� ���*���(��*
�--���/��
��'�����<"�������
����"@���)�����%����=�

��� ���*���(��*
�--�+�/��
��'����<�)�����%�/=6�����

��� ���*���(��*
�-����/��
��'��������+���&���2�

��)�%%&�!���� ��'�!#*��� �)���(��*+�%*�,�)�� )�

-���
�������'��(�*��%��������
���������**�"��'
�����
�"�������*�+����������(��������������
����"�

'
��
�
������*����������������������������'
��
����
���������**����4�

��� ���������3.����30�����- ,�����
��������$�%���#��������-3!����6

�+� ��������1 �1�������
��������$�%���#��������-3!.���6

��� ��(���������#�����������������������������������-3�����1-�����
��������$�%���#��������

A�����(�����-303�!�6

��� *���(��*
��3�����- ������
������!�����
����%����#��������-33,�$�6�����

��� ��"�(�����������������������������??�����
��$�����������������
����"�����-333�#�2

�#,�!���� �� $�)�,� .)�

/�4�-����+9�������*���(��*
�����������1�/��
�������'��(��������������%�&��4�

��� �
�����������
�����������������������������������(�������������  -�'�6

�+� �
��7����
�����������������������������������������  -�.�6

���� -3!���2! 2�
���� -3!.��2!2����������1 �1���'������������+"���������1��-������
��������$�%���#��������A�����(�����-303���2�.��/�'��
��������

���#�-����*����-33 2�
�!�� -303��2.�2�

�$�� -33,��2�,2�
�#�� -333��2�32�
�'�� �2	2��  -;1,!,2�
�.�� �2	2��  -;1,!?2�

Page 12



� 1

��� �
�� 
�������� 7��&� ���� :������ ���
�������� ������� ����� ��� ��������� ���(������ ������

�  -���6�����

��� �
��7���������
���������������������������������������  -���2

��� �
��������������������� ���*���(��*
��-��������������
�%������������� �
��*��*����������������

*��*���������������'��
�4�

��� �
�� ��%����(������ ��� ��"� '������� ����(������ ������ 7���� 1� ��� �
�� ������ $�%���#���� ����

�   /�'
���� �
��� ����(������ �������� ��� ��������'
��
� ���&� *����� +������ �
�� �����'
��/�

*�������������������,-�����
������4�

��� �
�����
����"����*��������������������������*������(��
��#�������"�*��%�����������
��

���������
����
����������
������������*���������
�����)�����(����������������6�

���� �
�� ���
����"� ��%����� �
���� �)�����(� ����� ��� �������� ��� �����*������ �
�� #�������"�

*��%�����������
�����������
����
����������
��������6����

����� �
�� #�������"� *��%������� ��� �
�� ����� ��� �
�� ��
������ ��� �
��� ������ �**�"� ���

#�#+���������>�*����#�#+��������
�����
����"���������������,-�,��+������
������6�

�+� �
����9���������������#�������������������
��������(�����6�����

��� ����**�����(������ �
����������������� ������#���������+�������� ����� ���+����� ��� ������������

���
��������(�����2�

�1� ��"�������#������������������01�����
��������$�%���#��������-3!��!���
����
�%�������������

�
��*��*�������*������+��(��
�����#�������������������������*��������������������������������������"�

�������/�����������������/��������+����(
���������������*����
��������2�

��(�������+�
��������
����������"����������������##������������������$�%���#����

���
����
� 

������������������

�����*�����  !� B�*���#����������##������������������$�%���#����

���� �2	2��  -;1,!!2�
���� �2	2��  -;1,!02�
�!�� �������#������������������01�����
��������$�%���#��������-3!��'��������**����/�+"��
���������#��������������������.�-�����

�����+������
��������/���������
����+���(���%�%��2�

Page 13



� .

��A�B����

�A����B�����B���8���
B����

7����-�

$�������*��%�������

0 �*�$(!��� �� $�� �#*%*#����� �

	�4�-���
���������**��������+�(������#�#+������������
����"2�

��� �����
�����������
����������(��
���'��
��
��(�������*�����*����*������+���+"��
����������"����

��������2

�1� 	�����"�������*����+����"������#*�"�'��
��
��*��%�����������
�������2�

�.� 	���
�������4�

<#�����(=�#�������"�#�����(���4�

��� �
�����
����"6�

�+� �
���)�����%������
�����
����"6�

��� ��"� ��� �
�� ���
����"@����� ���� �)�����%�@�� ��##������/� ��+>��##������/� 9����� ��##������/�

9�������+>��##������/�����������##������6�

<#�#+��=��������������>�*����#�#+�����������**�������#�#+��2�

�,� 	�� ��������� ��� �� *����
� �������/� ����������� ��� ��� ���
����"@�� #��������(� �������� ���� ���

���
����"@��������������##�������
����+������/����*����%��"/�������������������
��#��������(���������

�����
��������������##����������
����������������������������"������"���������'
��
�
�������������

��� ��������� ��� �
�� *����
� �������� ���� '
��
� ��� ��� ���*����+��� ������ �������� ,,�-��� ��� �
�� ������

$�%���#���������   2�

�!�%#

��4�-����+9���������+>*���(��*
����������,�/�"���#������#*�"�'��
��
��������'
���%���"��4�

��� ���������
��+�����������"�������
����"��'
��
/�����
�������/�����������
��+������������
��

����������'
��
�"�������������������**�������6����

�+� ���/� ����#� ��� ���� ��� (�%�� �
�� �#*�������� "��� ���� �����(� ��� �� ��*���������%�� ��� "����

���
����"/�

������������������"���������������*����"�����������������������(�"2�

��� ��+9���� ��� ��+>*���(��*
�� �1�� ���� �.�/� �
�������� ����� ���� 
�%�� ������� ��� ��������� ��� "����

����������
����
���'
�������������"���������������*����"2�

�1� 	�� ��������� ��� 
�%��(� ������� ��� ��������� ��� �������� ��� "���� ��������� ��*����"/� *���(��*
��

1������/�,�����?���������
�%��������/���� ��"���
��� ��#�/�'
�����
����������������������� �����#�����

������������'
��
�"���
�%��+�������%�����2�

�.� �������� ��� '
��
� �
��� ����� �**����� �'
��
��� �
��� ��� �������� ��� "���� ��������� ��*����"� ���

��������#��������������+>*���(��*
��1�����������������#�����������������'
��
�"����������%������

���������(� ��� �������� "��� ��##������ +������ �
�� ����� "��� ���&� ������/� +��� ���� '
��
� "��� ����

���%�������������
��������2�

�,� 5
����"��������������*���������%�����"�������
����"4�

��� �����
������%�������
���������$�������7�����*������������  -���2	2��  -;-. -�2�

Page 14



� ,

��� �������
�������%�������
����"/�"���#���/�'
��������(������
�����
������
����"/���#*�"�'��
�

�
�����
������
����"@�����������������6����

�+� ��� ��"� ��
��� +��"/� "��� #���/� '
��� �����(� ���� �
��� ��
��� +��"/� ��#*�"� '��
� "����

���
����"@�� ����� ��� �������/� �)��*�� ���� �������� ��� ��� ���������� '��
� ��"� ��
��� ��'����

�+��(����������'
��
��
�����
���+��"�#�"�+����+9���2�

�# #*�&���&�.���� )�

-�4�-������#������������
����'��
����*���2�

��� ����#�������4�

��� �����"�
��(�'
��
�#�"�������"�������
����"����+����
���"�����
���C�����"������#���������

�������������������11�����
���C�����"������  ?����6

�+� +���"���"�*�����6�

��� ����#�������������#*���������#��������"�*������'
�������������&��"����+�4�

��� ����#*�������/�

���� ��'������/����

����� ��%��%�������
����#�����������������"���%����(���������*��������(�/�

����������������������(�������
�����#�#+������������(�"���������
���������������#*�"�'��
�


������
������
����"@�����������������6����

��� �����"�
��(�'
��
���#*��#�������������&��"������#*��#�����
���#*��������"�����
����'
��

'��&����/�������+�
������/�"�������
����"2�

�1� 	�� ��������� ���*���������
�������� ���� �
�������*�������7���������
����"/� ���� �
��*��*��������

��+>*���(��*
� ������� �
����'
��'��&� ���/�������+�
������/� ������
����"� �������#��� ��� ����������

*�������������2�

/������#�������4�

��� ��������� �����#������(�%��� ���"��� ��������������+"���"���/���� �����#��������C������+"�

"��� '
��
� "��� +����%�/� ��� ��(
�� �������+�"� ��� +�� �'���/� ��� ��� �� ������������� ������/�

�)��*��'
���4�

��� "���
�%���
���������������*���������
����������(�%����6�

���� "���������C������+"���'���������6�

����� �
�� ����������� ��� #���� ��� �� �
���� *���"� ���� �
�� *��*���� ��� �+������(� *������������

��%���� *��%����� �
��� �
�� �
���� *���"� �(����� ���� ��� ��������� �
�� �����#������ ��� ��"�

��
���*�����6����

��%� �
���������������4�

���� �������+�����������
��*�+������������6�����

�++� #�������(��������
����������#*�������'��
��
���������+�����C����#���������
��

���
����"6����

�+� *��%��������
���*���������#�(�����(����������������#���������'
��
��
���*������������������

+"���'2�

�������#����������������"�������� �����#������'
��
��������������+�"�+����(���������+���(��(�

"�����������������
����"�����������*���2�

1�����4�

��� #���� ���� ���� ��� ����#*�� ��� ���� "���� *�������� ��� �� #�#+��� �#*��*���"� ��� ������� ��� ���

�����������"�������������"���
���*�����/������%����(����������%����(�6�����

�+� #���/�'
�������(�������
������(��
������+"���
��������
���������������"�������
����"4�

���� �  ?��212�

Page 15



� ?

��� ������������������'��
�"�������
����"@���������+�����C����#����6�

���� ��������
������
�������������������������#*��*���"�����*���������*��*��������������(�

*���"�*���������*��*�����6�����

��� #����
�%�� ��(���� ��� ��"� �**����+������������
����"��������� 7�+�����"�#���������� �
��

������$�%���#��������-30?���2


�4�-��5
��� ����
��(� ���������� ��� ��"�#������ "���#���� 
�%�� ��(���� ��� ��"� ����%���� ��%����

*��%��������"���+"4�

��� "�������
����"@���
�������������������6����

�+� "�������
����"@��#��������(��������/�

'
�����
�������������������(�*�����������
������
�����������"�������2�

��� ����#����(�%�� ����������������������������������������'��
���"���������"���C����#���������

��"��������+����������������C����#������#*�����+"�"�������
����"2�

7������

	���������

2#*)� �&�� �#*#)�)�


�4�-������
�%����*����������������������"�+�����������"�������
����"�'
�������
��4�

��� ����������������������&��"����������4�

��� ��"� +��"� ��� '
��
� "��� ���� �� #�#+��� ��� ��� �� *�������� ��� (������� �������� ���

#���(�#�����������'
��
�"��������**������������#�������+"�"�������
����"6�

���� ��"�+��"4�

���� �)�������(����������������*�+����������6�

�++� �������������
�����+���*��*����6����

���� �������'
����*�����*���*��*����� ��������� �
�� �������������*�+�����*���������

*����"����������(���"�*���������*���"����������������/�

���'
��
�"���������#�#+�����������*�����������(������������������#���(�#���6�

����� ��"��#*��"#�������+�������������������+"�"��6�

��%� ��"�*���������+��"�'
���#*��"�����
����**�������"��6�

�%� ��"�*���������+��"/���
����
���������%�������
����"/�'
��
���#������*�"#�������"���

��� ���*���� ��� "���� ��������� ��� ��"� �)*������ ��������� +"� "��� ��� ����"��(� ���� "����

������6�

�%�� ��"�*���������+��"�'
��
�����*��������+�������������������"�������
����"@������/�����

���'
�#�"���
�%����+������������������������������������������������
���*���������+��"�

�
����)�������
����#�����%��������D�,/   ��������
�������
�����
����������������
����

��*������'
��
�%�������
����'���6�

�%��� ��"��������������(����/����%��������'��&��#����+��'����"�������
����"�����"��������

���#����'
��
�"���������*������/�����#*��"����'
��
�"�����������#�����������������/�

�����*���������+��"�����
��������*������*�����������*���(��*
��%��6�

�%���� �
�����������������"�*���������#�'
�#�"���
�%�������%�����(�������
��*������"�'��
����

����#�����%�����������������D�,6�

��)� ��"���������"�������
����"@����������'
��
�"���
�%����+������������������6�

���� -30?��2- 2�

Page 16



� !

�)� ��"������'
�����
��������������"�������
����"�����"������/���������#����'
��
�"�������

��*������/�����#*��"����'
��
�"�����������#�����������������/������*���������+��"����

�
��������*������*�����������*���(��*
��%�����/��
��������6�

�)�� ��"����������
�����
����"@�����������'
��
�"���
�%���������������������� 9�����"�'��
�

��
������������*"������0���"��������(��6����

�+� �� ��������� ��� ��������� ��� �
��� +��������#�(
�� �������+�"� +�� ��(������ ��� ��������(� "����

'���>+���(� ��� ���������� *�������� ��� �
�� '���>+���(� ��� ���������� *�������� ��� �� ����%����

*�����������(��������)������
����
��#�9����"���4�

��� �����
�������������
��������'��
�������������%����������'��������
�������������)�*�"���/�

����*�"���� ��� ��
�+������� ��� �
�� ���������� ��%������ ��� '���/� ��� �
�� ����� #�"� +�/�

���������+"��
����������6�

���� �����
�����������
��$�����������������
����"����
�������������)�*�"���/�����*�"�������

��
�+�����������
������#+�"������������"����������+"��
����������6����

����� ���� ���� ��
��� ������� ��
��� �������� ��)� *�"���/� ����*�"���� ��� ��
�+������� ��� "����

���
����"@������2�

��� 	����+>*���(��*
��-��+�/�������%����*��������4�

��� ��#�#+������"������#��"������"�*������'��
�'
�#�"���
�%���������������������6����

�+� ��"�*���������+��"�'
���#*��"�����
����**����������
�*������/���"����#����'
��
��
�"�

������*������/������"���#*��"����'
��
��
�"��������������6�

��� ��"� *������ ��� +��"� ��� '
�#� ���
� *������� 
�%�� �� +���������� ��������� ��� �� ������ ���

������������)������(��
����#�����%��������D�,/   6����

��� ��"�+��"�������"*��������+��������+>*���(��*
��-���������������2�

��)!&�)(*#��'�%#*)� �&�� �#*#)�)�

��4�-����+9���������+>*���(��*
����������!�/�'
����"���
�%����*����������������������"�+��������

���"�������
����"�����"������������#�����(����"�������
����"����'
��
��
��+���������������������/�

"���#�����������������
���#�����(��
���)�����������������������
����������������
����##����#�������

�
����������������/����'
����
�����������+���#����**�����2�

��� 5
����"���
�%����*����������������� �����"�+�����������"�������
����"�'
��
��������� ������ ���

��&��"�������������*������������+������*���(��*
�0�-�����������0�-������������/�"�����������"����������

��� �
��#�����(� �
�� �)�������� ���� ������� ��� �
��� ��������� '
��� "��� �������� �
��#�����(� ��� �
���

+�������2�

�1� 5
����"���
�%����*����������������������"�+������������
�����
����"�����
���"*��#������������

*���(��*
�0�-�����%����/�"����������������������
�������������)������������
����������������
��#�����(�

����
�����������'�����(��������#�����
����
����"�����+�������
�����������
��#�����(2�

�.� ��+>*���(��*
��-�����"��**�����'
����"��������'���������(
���������+�"����+���'��������
��

�)������������
��*����������������2�

�,� 5
���� "��� 
�%�� �� *�������� ��������� +��/� +"� %������ ��� *���(��*
� -./� �������%�� �����#������

�������(����������������(�����������"�������
����"@����(���������#�#+���@����������/�"���#�������������

����
��#�����(��
���"���
�%����*����������������/�+����������������������
���������%�������#���������

�
��#�����(2�

�?� ��+9���� ���*���(��*
�-��-��+�/�'
����"���
�%����*�������� ��������� ��� ��"�+�������� ���"����

���
����"�����"���
�%��#��������)�����%�������������������������� �
���+�������/�"���#�����������

�
�����"�'������������#��������
���������������������
���)�����������������������
�����������2�

�!� 	���
���*���(��*
/�<�)�����%����������=�������+��������������������������'��
���"���(���������

#����+"��
����������"�������������������������������
��������$�%���#���������   ���2

��� �����
�����������
����������)�����%�������(�#�����������������	����#����������(��������(�����������2	��   ;1�!��2�

Page 17



� 0

2*#3($�!��&�� �#*#)��.# #*�&&+�

	��4�-����+9���� ��� ��+>*���(��*
� ���/� '
���� "��� 
�%�� �� *�������� ��������� ��� ��"� +�������� ���

"�������
����"�"��������
�%����*��9���������������������
���+��������'
�����
������������������'
��
�

�� #�#+��� ��� �
�� *�+���� '��
� &��'���(�� ��� �
�� ����%���� ������ '����� �������+�"� ��(���� ��� ���

��(����������
�����������&��"����*��9������"����9��(�#��������
��*�+������������2�

��� �����������
�%����*��9����������������������"�+������������
�����
����"�'
�����
���+�������4�

��� ����� ���� ������� "���� ���������� *�������� ��� �
�� ���������� *�������� ��� �� *������ ��� +��"�

������+������*���(��*
�06�

�+� ����� ���� ������� ��� �
�� �����#����(� ��� ��"� �**��%��/� �������/� �������/� *��#������� ���

��(�������������������������"��������"�*���������+��"�������+������*���(��*
�06����

��� ������������
���������������"�������
����"�������*������4�

��� 
�����(/�'
����"��������� ����������"�������
����"�*��%����� �
��� �
���� �������������

�����������*����������"����"����������"���������6�

���� ��
����#����������
���������*�����������%�����(��)*�����/�'
����"���������*���������

(��������������
��������������#�����������/����������*������(�%�������������
���/��������

�����������*����������"�����
����
����'
��
��
���
�����������6�

����� ��������"� ���&�*�"� ������ 7����E	���� �
�� ��������������"�������+������� ����:��������

����-33�/�'
����"���������������*����/���������������������
�������*����/����
�*�"6�

��%� �������'����/�*�"#�����������#���"�(�%������#�#+���6�

�%� ��"�����#������
������(�%������#�#+���6�����

�%�� ������(�����������)������*����*���������
��������$�%���#����8�����������-33�2�

2*#3($�!��&�� �#*#)�)��*�)� .�� �*#&���� �����,#*,�#4�� $�)!*(�� +�!�""���##)�

		������ ����� 
�%�� �� *��9�������� ��������� ��� ��"� +�������� +������ ��� �%��%��'� ���� �������"�

��##���������"�������
����"������������+>��##������������
�����##�������'
���4�

��� �
���+������������������������������#�����'
��
����#*��#��������������������������&���+"�

"���� ���
����"@�� �)�����%�� ��� ����
��� ��� "���� ���
����"@�� ��##������/� ��+>��##������/�

9�������##����������9�������+>��##������6�����

�+� ��� �
�� ��#�� �
�� ��������� '��� #���� ��� ������� '��� ��&��/� "��� '���� �� #�#+��� ��� �
��

�)�����%�/���##�����/���+>��##�����/�9�������##���������9�������+>��##������#���������

���*���(��*
���������"���'����*�������'
����
������������'���#��������������'�����&��2�

�''#!���'�%*#3($�!��&�� �#*#)�)�� �%�*��!�%���� �

	��4�-����+9���� �����+>*���(��*
����/�'
����"���
�%����*��9�������� ��������� �����"�+�����������

"�������
����"4�

��� "���#����'��
���'����#��
�����#�����
�#+���'
������#�����(�����������(��
��+��������

���+���(�
���4�

��� ����������'
������+>*���(��*
������**����/��##�������"�������#�&��(���*������������/�

���'����(�C������������(�%��(��%������6�

���� ��� ��"� ��
��� ����/� '
���%��� ��� +���#��� �**������ �
��� �
�� +�������� ��� +���(�

���������������
���#�����(6�

�������"���
�%���+������������*������������#�"�������
����"@��������������##�����6�

�+� "���#���������)��������)�����%����������������������������
���+�������6�����

��� "���#�����������&��#*��*���"��������������������������+�����
���+�������2�

��� 5
����"���
�%����*��9�������� ��������� �����"�+�����������"�������
����"/�"���#�"����������

#�����(� ���������(���#�����(���� �
���%��%��'����� �������"���##���������"���� ���
����"���� ��� ��

��+>��##������ ��� ���
� �� ��##������� +��� ���"� ���� �
�� *��*���� ��� #�&��(� ��*������������/�

Page 18



� 3

���'����(�C������������(�%��(��%��������������(���� �
��+�������/�*��%������
����
��*�+�������������

����'��������������
��#�����(������
����#��*��*���/�'
��
�������������������"���(
�������
��'���2�

7����1�

��(���������������#+���@�	���������

�#.�)�*���� ��'�"#"�#*)5�� �#*#)�)�

	-�4�-����+9�������*���(��*
�-./�"���#���/�'��
����0���"����4�

��� �
��������+���(����*����+"�����**��������"�������
����"6����

�+� "�����������������**����#���������������'
�����
������������/�

��(������ ���"�������
����"@����(���������#�#+���@� �����������#������������������������0-�-����� �
��

������$�%���#���������   �������������"����*������������������'
�����
�"������'��
���������(��"�

#��������� ���*���(��*
�0�-����/�+"�*��%����(�'�����������������������"�������
����"@��#��������(�

�������2

��� ��+9�������*���(��*
�-./�"���#���/�'��
����0���"�����+���#��(��'���������"���'�*��������

������������ �
��(�������"�*�������� �����������(��������������*���(��*
� �-�/���(����������������� �
���

��'�*�������� �������������
��(��+"�*��%����(�'�����������������������"�������
����"@��#��������(�

�������2

�# )���,#�� '�*"���� �

	/�4�-��5
����"������������ �
��� �
�� �����#������ �������(� ��� ��"���� "����*�������� ���������� ���

�������%�� �����#�����/� ���� "���� ���
����"@��#��������(��������� �(����/�"��� ��������� �������� �
���

�����#������'
�����(�������(��
�����������/���/�����
�������#�"�+�/����
��(������
������������������

*���(��*
�-12�

��� ����#���/�'��
����0���"�����+���#��(��'���������"��
��(����������#��������'
��
�#�����

�
��� �����#������ �)������� ������ *���(��*
� �-�� ��� ��� ���(��� �������%�� �����#�����/� �����"� "����

���
����"@��#��������(�����������&��(��
����
�������#������+��������������"�������
����"@����(������

���#�#+���@����������2�

�1� 	���
�������/�<�������%�������#�����=�#����������#������'
�����%����+����"��������*�������+"�

�
��*�+�����������/���������&��"����������/��������������&��
���"��������*������'
����%���'��
�"���#�"�

+����+9���������%���������������#�������2�

Page 19



� - 

�62�������7������

!"�� ������� �����
�����������#����$�

�
�� ������ ��������� �� #����� ����� ��� �������� ��� ��(����� �
�� �������� '
��
� ��� �)*������ ���

#�#+���� ���� ��>�*���� #�#+���� ��� ����%���� ���
�������� ��� ��(����� ���� *������ ���
�������� ���

��(���������5����2��
����������"����������
���*�'���������������
����������������������, �����
��

������$�%���#���������   2���������������,-���� �
������/����
����
����"�#�������*������������

���������**�"��(� ��� ����#�#+����������>�*����#�#+����'
��
�#���� �����*������ ��"�#�������"�

*��%�����������
������2���������������,-�,�/�'
����������
����"�������������*�����
��������'��
���

��)�#���
������
����������#��(�����������/��
��#�������"�*��%�����������
�������'�����**�"�����
��

#�#+��������
�����
����"�������������*��������'������2�

�*��!&#� 	� *��%����� �
��� �
��� ������ �**����� ��� �*�������� ���
�������� ��� ��(����� ���� *������

���
�������������(���������5����2�

�*��!&#���*��%������
�����#�������������������������
����
����������
�������/������������'
��
����

����*��%�����������#�������"2�

�*��!&#�-�����**������
����������"�*��%��������������(�����
��
����������������������$�%���#����

������������#�#+���@����������2�

�*��!&#�/���%�&��4�

�
�����������
�����������������������������������(�������������  -���6

�
��7����
�����������������������������������������  -���6

���

�
��7���������
���������������������������������������  -�$�2

�
�����������������������
�%������������������������#������������##������+�������
�������'
���

�
����'������������*��������**��������������
����"2�

��������.�1��*��%������
����������#������������������01�����
��������$�%���#��������-3!���
����


�%��������������
��*��*�������*������+��(��
�����#�������������������������*���������������2�

	���
���!8#$(&#�����8#��*$#*4

2�*�.*�%8�	�����
�������*��%������
����
��������**����������"�#�#+������������
����"������
���

�������
�����*����+����"�������
�#�#+��������#*�"�'��
��
������2�

2�*�.*�%8�������
�������*��%������
����
��������**�����'
���%�����#�#+�����������(����
������


��� ��������� ��*����"/� ���� ��� ��������� ��� �������� ��� �� #�#+��@�� *��%���� ��*����"� �
�� ����� ���"�

�**�����'
�������
���������
��������������������#��������%������2������������"/�'
������#�#+������

�����(��������*���������%�����
������
������
����"/�
������
��#�����������������+���%���
�����
����"@��

����/��������
������
�������+9�����������
�������%�������
����"@������/�����������������������������"�

��
���+��"���������������'��
���"���
�����(����+��(������2�

2�*�.*�%8� -� ��� �
�� ����� *��%����� �
��� #�#+���� #���� ������ ��
���� '��
� ���*���� ���� ���� ���

��"�
��(�'
��
�#�"��������
�������
����"����+����
��C�����"���(��������/����'
��
���#*��#������
��

�#*��������"���� �
����'
��'��&������
�����
����"����+���"���"�����������#����*���������%��%������

���������������������2�

���� �2	2��  -;1,!,2�
���� �2	2��  -;1,!?2�
�!�� �2	2��  -;1,!!2�
�$�� �2	2��  -;1,!02�

�
��
��������7��&�����:���������
�����������������������������������(����� �������  -�!�6

Page 20



� --

2�*�.*�%8�/�����
�������*��%������
���#�#+����#��������'��
����������������������������������

�����#�������
�"�
�%����C����������#��������*��%������
�������#�(�����(����������������#���������

'
��
��
�"�������������2�

2�*�.*�%8� �� ��� �
�� ����� *��%����� �
��� �� #�#+���#���� ���� �������� 
�#����� ��� 
������� ��� ��

#������'
��
�������+���(�
������
������
����"�����������*���2�

2�*�.*�%8�1�����
�������*��%������
�����#�#+���#������������
������
���*���������#*��*���"����

(���� ��� ��%����(�� ��� ������� �� �����%����(�� ���� �
��� '
��� ����(� ��� ���
������(� �
�� ���� ��� �
��

���
����"@�� ���������/� 
�� ��� �
�� #���� ���� ��� ����������� '��
� �
�� ���
����"@�� �������+���

��C����#����/� #���� ���� *��#��� �
���� ���������� ��� +�� ����� ���� *��������� *��*����� ����#���� 
�%��

��(��������
�����������
����"���������7�+�����"2�

2�*�.*�%8�
�����
�������*��%������
�����#�#+���#����
�%����(���������%����(�%���+"��
���
����

��������������������#��������(�������������#����(�%������������������������#���2�

2�*�.*�%8�
�����
�������*��%���������������#�������'
��
��������������*����������������2�

2�*�.*�%8� �� ��� �
�� ���� *��%����� �
��� (�������"� �� #�#+��� '��
� �� *�������� ��������� ��� ��"�

+�����������
������
������
����"�#��������������
�����������������"�#�����(����'
��
��
��+�����������

����������2�

2�*�.*�%8�	������
�������*��%������
���(�������"���#�#+���'��
���*����������������������
�����

*��9�������� ��������� ��� �
�� ���������������+�� ��(������+"���#�#+������ �
��*�+���������� ��(���������

�
�����������&��"����*��9������
������
���9��(�#��������
��*�+������������2��
��*���(��*
�*��%������
���

����*�������������#����������#�#+���#�"���(����
�#������������
�%��(���*��9����������������2�

2�*�.*�%8�		���� �
�������*��%����� �
�����#�#+���'
��'�����%��%������#�&��(���������������

��&��(� ������� ��� �� #������ #���� ���� +�� ��%��%��� ��� �
�� �%��%��'� ���� �������"� ��##�����@��

������������������
���������������������2�

2�*�.*�%8�	����� �
�������*��%������
�����#�#+���'��
���*��9�����������������#���/�������/�����

�)�#*��/�
������
�����#�&��(���*�����������������#�#+��������
��*�+�����������������'������#�&��

��*������������� ��� �
��� #�����/� ��� 
�� ��� �
�� 
��� �+������� �� ���*��������/� '��
���'� ���#� ��"�

#�����(�����'
��
��
��+�������� ���+���(�����������/�����#�������� �#*��*���"���������������������

����������������
��+�������2�

2�*�.*�%8�	-�����
�������*��%������
�����#�#+���#���������"��
��#��������(������������
������


���*��������������������� ��"��
��(������
��������������#���������+����������2�

2�*�.*�%8�	/� ��� �
�������*��%����� �
��� ��#�#+���#�"� �����"� �
��#��������(� ����������� ��"�

�������%�������#�������
���%����+����"����'
��
�����
��*�+�����������/���������&��"����������/�����������

���&� �
��� �
��#�#+��� ��� �� *������ '
�� ��%��� '��
� 
�#� ��� 
��� #�"� +�� ��+9������ ��� %�������� ���

����#�������2�

Page 21



D12  

����'����*"��(
���  !�

7�����������*�+���
�������
���F�+"��
�����������"����������#�����
�������
�����
����"�������*���������������������������/���������������A�����9���"@��
���������"������������G����@��7������������������7�����#���2�

� ? !� � .;�  !� -! ? !�� � -3,0,�

Page 22



1

EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM TO  

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT) ORDER 2007 

2007 No. 1159

1. This explanatory memorandum has been prepared by the Department for Communities 

and Local Government and is laid before Parliament by Command of Her Majesty. 

2.  Description 

2.1 This Order revokes and replaces, with amendments, the following Orders- 

the Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (England) Order 2001; 

the Parish Councils (Model Code of Conduct) Order 2001; 

the National Park and Broads Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) 

(England) Order 2001; and 

the Police Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) Order 2001. 

2.2 The Order prescribes the Model Code of Conduct (“the Code”) to apply to 

members (whether elected, appointed or co-opted members) of relevant 

authorities (ie county councils, district councils, London borough councils, 

parish councils, the Greater London Authority, the Metropolitan Police 

Authority, the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority, the Common 

Council of the City of London, the Council of the Isles of Scilly, fire and 

rescue authorities, policy authorities, joint authorities, the Broads Authority 

and National Parks authorities).

2.3 The main changes to the Code made by the Order are to- 

simplify and clarify the drafting of the Code, including making the 

language in which it is written gender-neutral; 

amend the rules in the Code relating to prejudicial interests, so that a 

member only has a prejudicial interest where his interest is greater than that 

of the majority of people in the ward affected by the matter, rather than 

merely greater than the interest of other people in the council’s area (a 

modified version of this rule applies where the member does not represent 

a ward);

provide that the code of conduct will apply to members’ conduct in their 

private capacity where such conduct has resulted in a criminal conviction; 

and

Page 23



2

allow members with a prejudicial interest to speak at a council meeting 

providing this is to solely to allow them to make representations, answer 

questions or give evidence, but not to vote.

3. Matters of special interest to the Joint Committee on Statutory Instruments 

3.1  None 

4. Legislative Background 

4.1 Part 3 of the Local Government Act 2000 (“the 2000 Act”) concerns the 

conduct of members of relevant authorities in England and police authorities in 

England and Wales.  Section 50 gives the Secretary of State power to issue a 

code of conduct for members and co-opted members of relevant authorities 

and to make the provisions of the code of conduct mandatory (which means 

they will apply to members or co-opted members of authorities even if the 

authority fails to adopt the code itself). 

4.2 The provisions of the Model Code of Conduct which have been made are 

further explained in the ‘policy background’ section below. 

5. Extent 

5.1 This instrument applies in relation to relevant authorities in England and police 

authorities in Wales. 

6. European Convention on Human Rights 

6.1 As the instrument is subject to negative resolution procedure and does not 

amend primary legislation, no statement is required. 

7. Policy background 

7.1 The Local Government White Paper, ‘Strong and Prosperous Communities’, 

issued in October 2006, set out the Government’s policy for localising and 

simplifying the conduct regime for local government members. In the White 

Paper the Government indicated its view that strong and accountable local 

leadership requires the highest standards of conduct so as to maintain the 

necessary public confidence and trust. As part of its programme to promote 

these goals, the Government announced its commitment to provide a clearer, 

simpler and more proportionate code of conduct for local government 

members, and to amend the rules on personal and prejudicial interest to 

remove barriers to councillors being able to speak up as advocates for, and 

leaders of, their local communities, and for the public bodies on which they 

serve.

7.2 The White Paper followed the Government’s discussion paper, ‘Conduct in 

English Local Government: The Future’, in December 2005, which set out the 

Government’s response to the recommendations made by the Standards Board 

for England for amendments to the model code of conduct. These 

Page 24



3

recommendations followed extensive consultation by the Board in 2005. The 

discussion paper indicated that we welcomed the recommendations the Board 

had presented, and that the Government agreed with the Board that 

amendments should be made to the code along the lines proposed, which 

would make the code clearer and more proportionate, but with a rigorous 

approach to the identification of serious misconduct.   

7.3 On 22 January 2007 the Department therefore published a consultation paper 

setting out its proposals for the detailed amendments needed to put into effect 

our undertaking to amend the code of conduct so as to achieve the aims 

identified in the White Paper. Copies of the paper were sent to all local 

authorities, authorities’ representative bodies and other stakeholders in 

England. It was also made available on the Department’s web-site.  The paper 

can currently be found on the Department’s web-site at the following link: 

  http://communities.gov.uk/index.asp?id=1137858. 

7.4 The consultation period closed on 9th March 2007.   The Department received 

906 representations in response to the consultation.  A large majority of 

respondents supported the changes proposed.

7.5 Following the consultation, we have amended the Order in response to the 

detailed drafting comments made by a number of respondents.  The main 

changes made are as below. 

To improve the accessibility and user-friendliness of the code by 

replacing references to ‘the member’ and ‘him or her’ with ‘you’ 

throughout.

To delete references to ‘public service interests’ and extend the more 

relaxed provisions proposed for those with a public service interest to all 

members. This will mean that no member will have a prejudicial interest 

unless the matter affects his financial position or that of his family or 

those with a close association with him, or if the matter relates to the 

determining of any approval, consent or licence in relation to him, his 

family or those with a close association with him.  

To provide revised drafting to ensure that members with a prejudicial 

interest should have the same right to attend meetings so as to make 

representations, give evidence or answer questions as would apply to a 

member of the general public.      

To provide clearer drafting to ensure that the remit of the code in respect 

of conduct in a member’s private capacity is restricted to behaviour for 

which a criminal conviction has been received. 

Guidance

7.6 The intention is that the Standards Board will shortly publish guidance to assist 

members in relation to the new Code.   

Page 25



4

8. Impact 

 8.1 A full regulatory impact assessment has not been produced for this instrument, 

 as it has no impact on the costs of businesses, charities or voluntary bodies; 

 neither does it have significant financial impact on any public bodies.  

9. Contact 

Michael Davis at the Department for Communities and Local Government Tel: 020 

7944 4277 or e-mail: michael.davis@communities.gsi.gov.uk can answer any queries 

regarding the instrument. 

Page 26



(Monitoring Officer) To note the current position on allegations made to the 
Standards Board for England regarding District and Parish/Town Councillors. 
 
Standards 
Board 
Reference 

Current Position 

SBE 17662.07 
- 
SBE 
17672.07 

Standards Board decided that the allegations should not be referred 
to an Ethical Standards Officer for investigation - having taken 
account of the information available they did not believe that a 
potential breach of the Code is disclosed. They made no finding of 
fact. 

SBE 17447.07 Standards Board decided that the information provided was 
insufficient to make a decision as to whether it should be referred 
for investigation. They made no finding of fact. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Revised  Code of Conduct for Members
	Explanatory Memo to Model Code

	5 Allegations about the Conduct of District and Parish/Town Councillors - Current Position

